
Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155‐0365 

Oneida‐nsn.gov  

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA REVISED 
Business Committee Conference Room - 2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

October 15, 2025 
9:00 a.m.  

I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda

II. Minutes to be Approved
1. October 1, 2025 LOC Meeting Minutes (pg. 2)

III. Current Business
1. Budget and Finances Law Amendments (pg. 4)

IV. New Submissions

V. Additions

VI. Administrative Updates

VII. Executive Session

VIII. Recess/Adjourn

1 of 28

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of October 1, 2025 
 Page 1 of 2  

 
 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

 

 

 

 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

Oneida Business Committee Conference Room-2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

September 17, 2025 

9:00 a.m. 

  

Present: Jameson Wilson, Jonas Hill, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen 

Excused: Marlon Skenandore 

Others Present: Clorissa N. Leeman, Grace Elliott, Carolyn Salutz, Mistylee Herzog 

Others Present on Microsoft Teams: David Jordan, Melissa Alvarado, Peggy Helm-Quest, 

Shannon Stone, Tina Jorgensen, Ralinda Ninham-Lamberies, Rhiannon Metoxen, Fawn Billie, 

Kaylynn Biely, Taryn Webster, Tavia James Charles, Katsitsiyo Danforth, Lee Schuyler, Jeremy 

King, Rae Skenandore, Eric Boulanger 

 

I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda  

Jameson Wilson called the October 1, 2025, Legislative Operating Committee meeting to 

order at 9:00 a.m. 

 

Motion by Jonas Hill to adopt the agenda with the deletion of item III.3 - Current Business 

- Hunting, Fishing, and Trapping Law Amendments; seconded by Jennifer Webster. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

II. Minutes to be Approved  

1. September 17, 2025 LOC Meeting Minutes 

Motion by Jonas Hill to approve the September 17, 2025 LOC meeting minutes and 

forward to the Oneida Business Committee; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

III. Current Business 

1. Real Property Law Amendments 

Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the legislative analysis and public meeting packet 

for the proposed amendments to the Real Property Law and schedule a public meeting to 

be held on November 14, 2025; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

2. Higher Education Scholarship Law 

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the updated draft Higher Education Grant law and 

public meeting packet for the Higher Education Grant Law and schedule a public meeting 

to be held on November 14, 2025; seconded by Jonas Hill. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

2 of 28

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

r'\ 
GDDDOO 

ONEIDA 

"' <XXXXX) 

ONEIDA 



Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of October 1, 2025   
  Page 2 of 2  
 

  

IV. New Submissions 

  

V. Additions  

  

VI. Administrative Updates 

  

VII. Executive Session 

   

VIII. Adjourn 

Motion by Jennifer Webster to adjourn at 9:14 a.m.; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

3 of 28



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  
 

 

   Legislative Operating Committee 
October 15, 2025 

 

Budget and Finances Law  
Amendments 

Submission Date: 3/6/24 Public Meeting: N/A 
LOC Sponsor:  Jennifer Webster  Emergency Enacted: N/A 

 
Summary:  This item was added to the Active Files List on March 6, 2024. Resolution BC-05-11-22-
B, Amendments to the Budget Management and Control Law, included a directive that the Legislative 
Reference Office collaborate with the Nation’s Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer to conduct a one 
(1) year review of the Budget and Finances law and provide the Oneida Business Committee a report on 
the use and implementation of the Law. The Legislative Reference Office and Legislative Operating 
Committee met with the Nation’s Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer on February 7, 2024, to review 
and discuss how the implementation and utilization of the Budget and Finance law has fared since the 
most recent amendments were adopted in May of 2022. Through the discussions with the Nation’s 
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer it was determined that there are potential amendments to the 
Budget and Finances law that would be beneficial to the Nation to make. The Nation’s Treasurer and 
Chief Financial Officer recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee consider adding the 
Budget and Finances law to its Active Files List for amendments to be made. 
 
3/6/24 LOC: Motion by Jonas Hill to add Budget and Finances law amendments to the Active Files List 

with Jennifer Webster as the sponsor; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
3/20/24: Work Meeting. Present: Jameson Wilson, Jennifer Webster, Jonas Hill, Marlon Skenandore, 

Clorissa Leeman, Grace Elliott, Fawn Cottrell, Kristal Hill, Maureen Perkins. The purpose of 
this work session was for the LOC to discuss and determine a priority for this legislative item. 

 
7/2/25 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the request for amendments to the Budget and Finances 

law as information, noting the Budget and Finances law is already on the Active Files List for 
amendments; seconded by Marlon Skenandore. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
7/21/25: Work Meeting. Present: Jameson Wilson, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Jonas Hill, 

Clorissa Leeman, Lawrence Barton, Ralinda Ninham-Lamberies, Melissa Alvarado, Fawn 
Billie, Fawn Cottrell, Kristal Hill. The purpose of this work meeting was to review and discuss 
potential amendments to the law. 

 
8/18/25: Work Meeting. Present: Jonas Hill, Jameson Wilson, Clorissa Leeman, Lawrence Barton, 

Ralinda Ninham-Lamberies, Melissa Alvarado, Kristal Hill, Fawn Cottrell, Rhiannon 
Metoxen. The purpose of this work meeting was to continue the review and discussion of 
potential amendments to this law. 

 

4 of 28

"' 000000 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

10/3/25: Work Meeting. Present: Jameson Wilson, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Clorissa Leeman, 
Lawrence Barton, Ralinda Ninham-Lamberies, Melissa Alvarado, Fawn Billie, Fawn Cottrell. 
The purpose of this work meeting was to review the updated draft of amendments to the law. 

 
Next Steps: 

 Approve the draft of the proposed amendments to the Budget and Finances law. 

5 of 28

~ 
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 1 
 

Title 1. Government and Finances – Chapter 121 
Twahwistatye>n$tha> 

We have a certain amount of money 
BUDGET AND FINANCES 

 
121.1.  Purpose and Policy 
121.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
121.3.  Definitions 
121.4.  Authority and Responsibilities 
121.5.  Budget 
121.6.  Expenditures and Assets 

121.7.  Grants 
121.8.  Debts 
121.9.  Employment and Labor Allocations 
121.10.  Budget Contingency Planning 
121.11.  Reporting 
121.12.  Enforcement 

 1 
 2 
121.1.  Purpose and Policy 3 
121.1-1.   Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to set forth the requirements to be followed by the 4 
Oneida Business Committee and the Oneida fund units when preparing the budget to be presented 5 
to the General Tribal Council for approval, and to establish financial policies and procedures for 6 
the Nation which: 7 

(a)  institutionalize best practices in financial management to guide decision makers in 8 
making informed decisions regarding the provision of services, implementation of business 9 
plans for enterprises, investments, and capital assets; 10 
(b)  provide a long term financial prospective and strategic intent, linking budget 11 
allocations to organizational goals, as well as providing fiscal controls and accountability 12 
for results and outcomes; 13 
(c)  identify and communicate to the membership of the Nation spending decisions for the 14 
government function, grant obligations, enterprises, membership mandates, capital 15 
expenditures, technology projects, and capital improvement projects; 16 
(d)  establish a framework for effective financial risk management; and  17 
(e)  encourage participation by the Nation’s membership. 18 

121.1-2.   Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to rely on balanced-based budgeting strategies, 19 
identifying proper authorities and ensuring compliance and enforcement. The Nation shall use 20 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), established by the Financial Accounting 21 
Standards Board, and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accounting and 22 
reporting for the financial activities of the various entities of the Nation, unless they conflict with 23 
applicable legal requirements. 24 
 25 
121.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 26 
121.2-1.   This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-02-08-17-27 
C, and amended by resolutionresolutions BC-05-11-22-B., and BC-__-__-__-__. 28 
121.2-2.   This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee or the General 29 
Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 30 
121.2-3.  Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 31 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 32 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 33 
121.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 34 
the provisions of this law shall control. Provided that, nothing in this law amends or repeals the 35 

6 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 2 
 

requirements of resolution BC-10-08-08-A, Adopting Expenditure Authorization and Reporting 36 
Requirements. 37 
121.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 38 
 39 
121.3.  Definitions  40 
121.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 41 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 42 

(a)  “Balanced budget” means that the cost of current expenses and service provisions is 43 
equal to the forecasted current revenue sources. 44 
(b)  “Capital contribution” means an act of giving money or assets to a company or 45 
organization. 46 
(c)  “Capital expenditure” means any non-recurring and non-physical improvement as 47 
follows: 48 

(1)  Any item with a cost of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or more and a useful life 49 
of one (1) year or more; or 50 
(2)  Items purchased together where none of the items individually costs more than 51 
two thousand dollars ($2,000), but the total purchase price for all of the items is ten 52 
thousand dollars ($10,000) or more. 53 

(d)  “Capital improvement” means a non-recurring expenditure for physical improvements, 54 
including costs for:  55 

(1)  acquisition of existing buildings, land, or interests in land;  56 
(A)  Acquisition of existing buildings and land completed by the Oneida 57 
Land Commission are not included in this definition. 58 

(2)  construction of new buildings or other structures, including additions and major 59 
alterations;  60 
(3)  acquisitiondemolition of fixed equipment; an existing building or other 61 
structures; 62 
(4)  landscaping;  63 
(5)  physical infrastructure; and  64 
(65)  similar expenditures with a cost of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) or more 65 
and a useful life of one (1) year or more.  66 

(e)  “CFO” means the Nation’s Chief Financial Officer, or their designee at their discretion. 67 
(f)  “Debt” means the secured or unsecured obligations owed by the Nation. 68 
(g)  “Debt Service Coverage Ratio” means a measurement of creditors available cash flow 69 
to pay debt obligations. This ratio evaluates if an entity has income capacity to service 70 
debts.  71 
(h)  “Enterprise” means any area or activity of the Nation that is engaged in for the business 72 
of profit or to break even. 73 
(i)  “Executive Manager” means a position of employment within the Nation that is the 74 
highest level in the chain of command under the Oneida Business Committee who is 75 
responsible for a department or division of the Nation, as identified by the Oneida Business 76 
Committee through the adoption of a resolution. 77 
(j)  “Expenditure report” means a financial report which includes, but is not limited to, a 78 
statement of cash flows, revenues, costs and expenses, assets, liabilities, and a statement of 79 
financial position. 80 
(k)  “Finance Administration” means the department of the Nation which consists of the 81 

7 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 3 
 

Chief Financial Officer, Assistant Chief Financial Officer, the executive assistant to the 82 
Chief Financial Officer, and any other designated employee. 83 
(l)  “Fiscal year” means the one (1) year period each year from October 1st to September 84 
30th. 85 
(m)  “Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio” means a measurement of a creditors capacity of 86 
earnings level or ability to cover its fixed charges such as debt payments, interest expenses, 87 
and leases expenses. Financial institutions will evaluate this ratio for purposes of credit 88 
risk.  89 
(n)  “Fund unit” means any board, committee, commission, service, program, enterprise, 90 
department, office, or any other division or non-division of the Nation which receives an 91 
appropriation approved by the Nation. 92 
(o)  “Government service” means any area or activity of the Nation that is not expected to 93 
create revenue for the Nation and not expected to make a profit at any time. 94 
(p)  “Line item” means the specific account within a fund unit’s budget or category that 95 
expenditures are charged to.   96 
(q)  “Manager” means the person in charge of directing, controlling, and administering the 97 
activities of a fund unit. 98 
(r)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 99 
(s)  “Secretary” means the Oneida Nation Secretary, or their designee at their discretion.  100 
(t)  “Treasurer” means the Oneida Nation Treasurer, or their designee at their discretion.  101 

 102 
121.4.  Authority and Responsibilities 103 
121.4-1.   Oneida Business Committee.  The Oneida Business Committee shall: 104 

(a)  oversee the development of the Nation’s budget; 105 
(b)  oversee the implementation of the Nation’s budget;  106 
(c)  develop priorities, a strategic plan, or broad goals to assist in guiding the budget; and  107 
(d(c)  exercise the authority provided in Article IV, Section 1, of the Constitution and 108 
Bylaws of the Oneida Nation, as delegated to the Oneida Business Committee by the 109 
General Tribal Council.  110 

121.4-2.  Treasurer.  In accordance with the Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation, the 111 
Nation’s Treasurer shall: 112 

(a)  accept, receive, receipt for, preserve and safeguard all funds in the custody of the 113 
Nation, whether they be funds of the Nation or special funds for which the Nation is acting 114 
as trustee or custodian; 115 
(b)  deposit all funds in such depository as the Nation shall direct and shall make and 116 
preserve a faithful record of such funds; 117 
(c)  submit expenditure reports and other financial reports as deemed necessary by the 118 
Oneida Business Committee or the General Tribal Council at: 119 

(1)  the annual General Tribal Council meeting; 120 
(2)  the semi-annual General Tribal Council meeting; and 121 
(3)  other such times as may be directed by the Oneida Business Committee or the 122 
General Tribal Council; and  123 

(d)  present the proposed draft budget to the General Tribal Council at the annual budget 124 
meeting. 125 

121.4-3.  Chief Financial Officer.  The CFO shall:  126 
(a)  ensure the Nation’s budget is properly implemented;  127 

8 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 4 
 

(a)  report to the Oneida Business Committee and/or Executive Managers any expenditures 128 
that do not follow budget guidelines or conform to the budget; 129 
(b)  provide managers with monthly revenue and expense reports; 130 
(c)  assist with the submission and presentation of the Treasurer’s report to the Oneida 131 
Business Committee, which shall specifically include any monthly variances that are 132 
either: 133 

(1)  a difference of three percent (3%) or more from the adopted annual budget; or  134 
(2)  fiftyone hundred thousand dollars ($50100,000) or more in total;  135 
(d)  provide the Oneida Business Committee with information and reports as requested;  136 
(e)  present the Treasurer’s report and hold financial condition meetings with the Nation’s 137 
management on a minimum of a quarterly basis; and  138 
(f)  inform the appropriateOneida Business Committee of any Executive Manager of 139 
anyManagers and/or fund unit which does not follow the budget development process 140 
guidelines or deadlines as set forth by the Treasurer. 141 

121.4-4.  Managers.  Managers shall:  142 
(a)  ensure that their business units operate, on a day-to-day basis, in compliance with the 143 
budget adopted pursuant to this law; 144 
(b)  report to the CFO and their relevant Executive Manager explanations and corrective 145 
actions for any monthly variance that is either: 146 

(1)  a difference of three percent (3%) or more from the adopted annual budget; or  147 
(2)  fiftyone hundred thousand dollars ($50100,000) or more in total;  148 
(c)  submit budget review reports to the CFO on a reasonable and timely basis not to exceed 149 
thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the month; and  150 
(d)  submit a budget for their fund unit in accordance with the budget schedule and 151 
guidelines as adopted by the Oneida Business Committee.  152 

 153 
121.5.  Budget  154 
121.5-1.   The Nation shall develop, adopt, and manage an annual budget. All revenues and 155 
expenditures of the Nation shall be in accordance with the annual budget.  156 

(a)  The Nation’s budget shall be a balanced budget and not propose to spend more funds 157 
than are reasonably expected to become available to the Nation during that fiscal year.  158 

(1) Underwriting debt resources or the utilization of existing debt instruments shall 159 
be expressly prohibited from use to balance the Nation’s annual operational budget. 160 

(b)  The budget shall align with any strategic plan, broad goals, or priorities developed and 161 
adopted by the Oneida Business Committee on behalf of the Nation.  162 
(c)  The Nation’s corporate entities shall not be included in the Nation’s budget. 163 

121.5-2. Content of the Budget.  The Nation’s budget shall include the following information: 164 
(a)  Estimated revenues to be received from all sources; and 165 
(b)  The individual budgets of each fund unit;. 166 
(c)  A description of each line item within each fund unit’s budget;  167 
(d)  The estimated expenditures by each fund unit; and   168 
(e)  Summary of employment position counts including prior year, current year, and 169 
budgeted year.  170 

121.5-3.  Fund Categories.  The Nation’s budget shall include, but not be limited to, the following 171 
categories of fund accounts: 172 

9 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 5 
 

(a)  General Fund.  The General Fund account is the Nation’s main operating fund which 173 
is used to account for all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. 174 
(b)  Permanent Executive ContingencyFinancial Sovereignty Fund. The Permanent 175 
Executive ContingencyFinancial Sovereignty Fund account is used by the Nation to 176 
prevent default on debt and to sustain operations during times of extreme financial distress. 177 
(c)  Grant Reserve Fund. The Grant Reserve Fund account is used by the Nation to pre-178 
fund the expenditures of grants upon receipt.sustain grant operations during times of 179 
extreme financial distress or sustain grant operations when grant funding has ended and the 180 
Nation has not had the appropriate time to plan for the end of delivery of those grant 181 
operations.  182 

121.5-4.  Budget Adoption Procedure.  The Nation shall develop and adopt its budget according 183 
to the following procedures: 184 

(a)   Budget Schedule and Guidelines.  The Treasurer shall develop the necessary 185 
guidelines, including specific timelines and deadlines, to be followed by the managers that 186 
have budget responsibility in preparing and submitting proposed budgets.  The Treasurer 187 
shall submit the guidelines to the Oneida Business Committee for review and approval 188 
through the adoption of a resolution no later than March 1st of each calendar year. 189 

(1)  The budget schedule and guidelines shall include at least one (1) opportunity 190 
for community input from the Nation’s membership on what should be included in 191 
the upcoming fiscal year budget. 192 
(2)  Each fund unit shall be responsible for complying with the budget schedule and 193 
guidelines to submit a proposed budget to the Treasurer. The Finance 194 
Administration shall not submit any budget on behalf of a fund unit unless granted 195 
express permission from the Oneida Business Committee. 196 
(3)  The Oneida Business Committee shall set a deadline through the adoption of a 197 
resolution for when the Treasurer shall submit their budget guidelines to the Oneida 198 
Business Committee for review and approval. 199 

(b)  Annual Proposed Budgets.  The TreasurerCFO shall receive, review, and compile the 200 
proposed budgets from all the fund units into the Nation’s draft budget. The Treasurer and 201 
CFO shall present the Nation’s draft budget to the Oneida Business Committee for review 202 
each year to ensure that it is consistent with the Nation’s strategic plan, broad goals, and 203 
budget strategy.priorities.  204 

(1)  Notification of Budget Increase or Decrease. The Treasurer shall identify in 205 
the budget guidelines a percentage of an increase or decrease in a fund unit’s budget 206 
from the prior year budget that is required to be noticed to the Oneida Business 207 
Committee. The Treasurer shall notify the Oneida Business Committee of any fund 208 
units whose proposed budget increased or decreased by this percentage. 209 

(c)  Final Draft Budget.  The Oneida Business Committee shall work with the Treasurer, 210 
CFO, and managers to compile a final draft budget to be presented to the General Tribal 211 
Council. The Oneida Business Committee shall approve, by resolution, the final draft 212 
budget to be presented to the General Tribal Council. 213 
(d)  Community Meetings.  Once the Oneida Business Committee has approved the final 214 
draft budget, the Treasurer shall hold, at a minimum, two (2) community informational 215 
meetings to present the contents of the final draft budget that will be presented to the 216 
General Tribal Council.  217 

10 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 6 
 

(e)  Budget Adoption.  The Oneida Business Committee shall present the budget to the 218 
General Tribal Council with a request for adoption by resolution no later than September 219 
30th of each year. The General Tribal Council shall be responsible for adopting the 220 
Nation’s budget. 221 

(1)  Continuing Budget Resolution.  In the event that the General Tribal Council 222 
does not adopt a budget by September 30th, the Oneida Business Committee may 223 
adopt a continuing budget resolution for a period of time not to exceed three (3) 224 
months, until such time as a budget is adopted by the General Tribal Council. If the 225 
General Tribal Council does not adopt a budget within three (3) months of the 226 
adoption of the continuing budget resolution, then the Oneida Business Committee 227 
shall adopt the Nation’s budget. 228 
(2)  Emergency Budget Adoption.  In the event that the Nation proclaims an 229 
emergency, in accordance with the Emergency Management law, that stays in effect 230 
for at least one (1) month and prevents the presentation to and adoption of the 231 
budget by the General Tribal Council, the Oneida Business Committee shall adopt 232 
the Nation’s budget. 233 

121.5-5.  Amendments to the Nation’s Budget.  After the budget is adopted, amendments of the 234 
budget shall not be permitted unless it is necessary to avoid a budget deficit. The Treasurer and 235 
CFO shall identify when forecasted revenue and forecasted expenses are impacted in a manner 236 
which creates a deficit for the current fiscal year. The CFO shall provide the Oneida Business 237 
Committee a written fiscal analysis and any input on the potential budget amendment. The Oneida 238 
Business Committee shall be responsible for adopting an amendment to the budget through 239 
resolution of the Nation. The Oneida Business Committee shall present notification of the budget 240 
amendment at the next available General Tribal Council meeting. 241 
 242 
121.6.  Expenditures and Assets  243 
121.6-1.  Procurement Rule Handbook.  The Purchasing Department is delegated rulemaking 244 
authority in accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop a Procurement Rule 245 
Handbook which provides the sign-off process and authorities required to expend funds on behalf 246 
of the Nation. 247 
121.6-2.  Authority to Expend Funds.  The Oneida Business Committee shall have the authority to 248 
expend appropriated funds in accordance with the Nation’s adopted budget pursuant to the 249 
Procurement Rule Handbook developed by the Purchasing Department. The authority to expend 250 
funds is then necessarily delegated to other managers, including Executive Managers of the Nation 251 
who manage budgets pursuant to their job descriptions based on the Procurement Rule Handbook.  252 
121.6-3.121.6-2.  Procurement Rule Handbook.  The Purchasing Department is delegated 253 
rulemaking authority in accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop a 254 
Procurement Rule Handbook which provides the sign-off process and authorities required to 255 
expend funds on behalf of the Nation.  256 
121.6-3.  Fees and Charges.  A program or service of the Nation funded through Tribal 257 
contribution may charge fees for their services to cover operational costs. 258 

(a)  Before charging fees for services, a program or service shall first determine the full 259 
cost of providing the program or service. The full cost of providing a program or service 260 
includes all costs including operation costs, overhead such as direct and indirect costs, and 261 
depreciation.  262 

11 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 7 
 

(b)  Fees and charges may cover the full cost of service or goods whenever such fee or 263 
charge would not present an undue financial burden to the recipient.   264 
(c)  Programs and services charging fees may offer fee waivers, provided that the program 265 
or service has developed a standard operating procedure which outlines fee waiver 266 
eligibility and requirements.  267 

121.6-4.  Unbudgeted Expenditures.   268 
(a)  Approval of Unbudgeted Expenditures.  A fund unit shall not make an unbudgeted 269 
expenditure of two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) or more unless approval 270 
is granted by the Oneida Business Committee. The CFO shall provide the Oneida Business 271 
Committee a written fiscal analysis and any input on the potential unbudgeted expenditure. 272 
The Oneida Business Committee shall approve any unbudgeted expenditure through the 273 
adoption of a resolution prior to the expenditure being made by a fund unit. 274 
(b)  Notification of Unbudgeted Expenditures.  The Oneida Business Committee shall set 275 
through resolution a threshold amount for unbudgeted expenditures that require 276 
notification by the Oneida Business Committee to the General Tribal Council at the next 277 
available General Tribal Council meeting. 278 
(c)  Unbudgeted Supplemental Funding.  In the event that the Nation receives any 279 
supplemental or emergency funding of two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) 280 
or more, the Oneida Business Committee shall develop and adopt, through resolution, a 281 
spending plan to guide expenditures of the supplemental funding in accordance with any 282 
provided guidance for the supplemental funding and audit compliance. 283 

121.6-5.  Obligated Future Expenditures.  Notwithstanding an approved multi-year contract, no 284 
fund unit shall obligate the Nation to make any future expenditures beyond the current budget year 285 
unless the fund unit identifies, and the Oneida Business Committee approves through the adoption 286 
of a resolution, the source and extent of any future funds that are recommended to be held in 287 
reserve to meet that future obligation. 288 
121.6-6.  Unexpended Funds. 289 
(a)  Unexpended Capital Improvement Funds.  Unexpended capital improvement funds shall carry 290 
over toat the nextend of each fiscal year’s budgetyear and remain available for use, provided that 291 
such funds are required to remain appropriated for the same purpose as originally budgeted until 292 
the project is complete.  Once a capital improvement project is complete, any remaining 293 
unexpended funds shall be returned to the General Fund. 294 

(b)  Unexpended Capital Expenditure Funds.  The Treasurer shall ensure that all 295 
unexpended capital expenditure funds are reallocated to the fiscal year budget two (2) years 296 
out from the fiscal year in which the funds were unexpended.  Such unexpended funds shall 297 
be returned to the General Fund. 298 

121.6-7.  Capital Contributions.  Any capital contributions made by the Nation shall be identified 299 
in the annual budget.  300 

(a)  Any reassignment of a loan provided by the Nation into a capital contribution shall be 301 
noticed to the General Tribal Council.  302 

121.6-8.  Assets of the Nation shall not be divested, or borrowed against, to balance the annual 303 
budget.  304 
121.6-9.  Capital Improvements. 305 

(a)  Capital Improvement Plan for Government Services.  The Oneida Business Committee 306 
shall develop, and the General Tribal Council shall approve, a capital improvement plan 307 
for government services. 308 

12 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 8 
 

(1)  The capital improvement plan for government services shall cover a period of 309 
five (5) to ten (10) years and shall include any risks and liabilities.   310 
(2)  The capital improvement plan for government services shall be reassessed once 311 
every five (5) years.  The Oneida Business Committee shall provide a status report 312 
and recommendation for any improvements that have not been completed or that 313 
have been modified at the time of the reassessment.   314 

(b)  Capital Improvement Plan for Enterprises.  Capital improvement plans for enterprises 315 
may be brought forward as needed, provided that the Oneida Business Committee shall 316 
approve all capital improvement plans for enterprises. 317 
(c)  Capital Improvement Plan Implementation.  Capital improvement plans for 318 
government services and enterprises shall be implemented, contingent on available funding 319 
capacity. 320 

 321 
. 322 

121.7.  Grants  323 
121.7-1.  Expending Grant Funds.  Grant funds shall be expended according to any non-negotiable 324 
grant requirements and guidelines of the granting agency.  325 

(a)  Grant funds may be utilized for, but not limited to, the following: 326 
(1)  purchases;  327 
(2)  travel;  328 
(3)  training; 329 
(4)  hiring grant required positions; and 330 
(5)  incentives and retention efforts; and  331 
(6(5)  any other requirements attached to the funds as a condition of the Nation’s 332 
acceptance of the grant funds. 333 

(b)  Grant funds may be utilized for an expenditure even when other policies of the Nation 334 
do not allow for Tribal contribution to make that same expenditure, if only grant funds are 335 
utilized for the expenditure and all requirements or obligations of the grant are met. 336 
Provided that, grant funds may be subject to the requirements of the budget contingency 337 
plan and any cost containment initiatives adopted by the Oneida Business Committee. 338 

121.7-2.  Exhaustion of Non-Tribal Funds.  When grant funds provide for forward funding as 339 
applicable to a function for which the Nation’s funds have also been appropriated, those grant 340 
funds shall be used before appropriating the Nation’s funds unless the Nation’s funds are needed 341 
to make up an otherwise shortfall in the overall fund unit budget or there is a restriction on the 342 
grant funds that provide otherwise. 343 
121.7-3.  Grant Reporting. At the time of submission of proposed annual budgets, any fund unit 344 
which receives grant funding shall submit a status report of the grant funding received to the 345 
Oneida Business Committee. The status report shall include, but not be limited to:  346 

(a)  information on the progress of the utilization of the grant funds; 347 
(b)  the number of employees the grant funding supports fully or partially; and  348 
(c)  compliance with obligations of the grant funding. 349 

121.7-4.121.7-2.  Grant Reserve Fund Account.  The Oneida Business Committee shall maintain 350 
a Grant Reserve Fund account within the ownership investment report to be used to pre-fund the 351 
expenditures of grants upon receipt.sustain grant operations during times of extreme financial 352 
distress or sustain grant operations when grant funding has ended. The Grant Reserve Fund account 353 
shall be an obligated fund, that is fully funded with separately identified cash resources. 354 

13 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 9 
 

(a)  The Treasurer, in consultation with the CFO, shall establish, and the Oneida Business 355 
Committee shall approve, the level of funds required in the Grant Reserve Fund account 356 
relative to the scale of grant dollars we receive on an annual basis. 357 
(b)  The Treasurer shall set aside funds within the budget in the Grant Reserve Fund account 358 
until the established level has been achieved.   359 

121.7-53.  Grant Funded Positions.  If the grant funding for a fully grant funded position is 360 
eliminated, then the position shall be eliminated. To transition a position from grant funding to 361 
being funded through the Nation’s budget, a manager shall follow the standard procedure for 362 
seeking the development and approval of a new position in the Nation’s annual budget and labor 363 
allocations. 364 
 365 
121.8.  Debts 366 
121.8-1.  General.  The acquisition of debt by the Nation shall be processed in accordance with 367 
sound fiscal diligence. The Nation shall comply with all relevant federal and state banking laws, 368 
rules, and policies applicable to the credit agreement. 369 

(a)  Any debt instrument utilized by the Nation shall not exceed the life of what is being 370 
encumbered. 371 

121.8-2.  Acquisition of Debt.  Any debt underwritten by the Nation for ten million dollars 372 
($10,000,000) or more shall be noticed to the General Tribal Council at the next available meeting 373 
prior to the execution of the credit agreement encumbering all pledges of repayment.  374 

(a)  If emergency circumstances exist which prevents the notice of the acquisition of debt 375 
to the General Tribal Council, the Oneida Business Committee may proceed with the 376 
acquisition of debt. 377 
(b)  Prior to the acquisition of any debt, the Nation shall obtain an amortization schedule 378 
for the repayment of the debt. 379 

121.8-3.  Use of Debt.  Credit proceeds may be utilized for project capital, general use, financing 380 
of equity, and all unspecified uses. Compliance with debt covenants is required to avoid credit 381 
default.  382 
121.8-4. Credit Ratios. Maintaining fiscally responsible prudent credit ratios is consistent with 383 
effective budget management and financial control.  384 

(a)  Debt Service Coverage Ratio.  The Debt Service Coverage Ratio shall not exceed the 385 
acceptable range as defined by low-risk debt financing options at the specific financial 386 
institution. 387 
(b)  Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio.  The Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio shall be maintained 388 
at the acceptable range as defined by low-risk debt financing options at the specific 389 
financial institution. 390 

121.8-5.  Corporate Debt.  The Nation shall not be obligated to any debt obligations of its corporate 391 
entities. 392 
 393 
121.9.  Employment and Labor Allocations   394 
121.9-1.  Employment Cap.  The Treasurer and CFO shall identify a maximum number of full-395 
time equivalent (FTE) employees to be employed by the Nation. The Oneida Business Committee 396 
shall have the authority to approve this employment cap, and any amendments thereto, through the 397 
adoption of a resolution. The employment cap shall be reviewed annually by the Oneida Business 398 
Committee. 399 

14 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 10 
 

(a)  Employment positions that are fully funded through grants shall not be included in the 400 
employment cap. 401 
(b(a)  The Nation shall not exceed the number of FTE employees identified in the 402 
employment cap. 403 

121.9-2. Labor Allocations List.  The Treasurer, CFO, Executive Managers, and the Executive 404 
Human Resources Director shall utilize the Nation’s employment cap to develop a labor 405 
allocations list. The labor allocations list shall identify the number of FTE employees each 406 
employment area of the Nation is allocated. The Oneida Business Committee shall have the 407 
authority to adopt the labor allocation list, and any amendments thereto, through the adoption of a 408 
resolution. The Oneida Business Committee shall review the labor allocations list on an annual 409 
basis. 410 

(a)  The total number of FTE employees identified in the labor allocations list shall not 411 
exceed the Nation’s employment cap. 412 
(b)  The Treasurer, CFO, Executive Managers, and Executive Human Resources Director 413 
shall develop a standard operating procedure which identifies a process for the 414 
consideration of requests to revise the labor allocations list. The Oneida Business 415 
Committee shall approve this standard operating procedure, and any amendments thereto, 416 
through the adoption of a resolution. 417 

121.9-3.  Unbudgeted Positions.  Any position which has not been specifically budgeted for and 418 
included in the labor allocation list shall be prohibited. Budgeted labor dollars and approved 419 
positions shall not be transferrable in any form. 420 

(a)  Exception.  The Oneida Business Committee may authorize an unbudgeted position for 421 
a fund unit. The CFO shall provide the Oneida Business Committee a written fiscal analysis 422 
and any input on the potential unbudgeted position. The Oneida Business Committee shall 423 
authorize the unbudgeted position through the adoption of a resolution. 424 

 425 
121.10.  Budget Contingency Planning   426 
121.10-1.  Budget Contingency Plan.  The Oneida Business Committee shall work with the CFO, 427 
Executive Managers, and managers to create a budget contingency plan which provides a strategy 428 
for the Nation to respond to or prepare for potential extreme financial distress that could negatively 429 
impact the Nation. 430 

(a)  Extreme financial distress includes, but is not limited to: 431 
(1)  natural or human-made disasters;  432 
(2)  United States Government shutdown;  433 
(3)  emergency proclamations; and 434 
(4)  economic downturns. 435 

(b)  The Oneida Business Committee shall approve the budget contingency plan, and any 436 
amendments thereto, through the adoption of a resolution. 437 

121.10-2.  Cost Saving Tools.  As part of the budget contingency plan, the Oneida Business 438 
Committee may require the use of cost saving tools, provided that the use of such complies with 439 
all laws of the Nation. Cost saving tools may include, but are not limited to, the use of the 440 
following: 441 

(a)  stabilization funds; 442 
(b)  reductions of expenditurescost optimization; 443 
(c)  furloughs; and 444 
(d)  layoffs.  445 

15 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 11 
 

121.10-3.  When the Oneida Business CommitteeCFO determines that the Nation is under extreme 446 
financial distress, or may face extreme financial distress in the near future, the CFO shall inform 447 
the Oneida Business Committee, and the Oneida Business Committee shall be responsible for 448 
implementing the budget contingency plan.   449 
121.10-4.  Permanent Executive ContingencyFinancial Sovereignty Fund Account.  The Oneida 450 
Business Committee shall maintain a Permanent Executive ContingencyFinancial Sovereignty 451 
Fund account within the ownership investment report to be used to prevent default on debt and to 452 
sustain operations during times of extreme financial distress. The Permanent Executive 453 
ContingencyThe Financial Sovereignty Fund account shall be a restricted fund. 454 

(a)  The Permanent Executive Contingency(a)  The Financial Sovereignty Fund account in 455 
combination with the Grant Reserve Fund account shall consist of a minimum reserve of 456 
one (1) year of operating expenses to ensure continuity of business for the Nation. 457 
(b)  The Treasurer, in consultation with the CFO, shall establish, and the Oneida Business 458 
Committee shall approve through the adoption of a resolution, the percentage of the annual 459 
budget that shall be set aside in the Permanent Executive ContingencyFinancial 460 
Sovereignty Fund account until the established level has been achieved.   461 
(c)  Funds in the Permanent Executive ContingencyFinancial Sovereignty Fund account 462 
may only be used when the Oneida Business Committee has determined that the Nation is 463 
under extreme financial distress for the following purposes and only to the extent that 464 
alternative funding sources are unavailable: 465 

(1)  payments to notes payable to debt service, both principal and interest, and 466 
applicable service fees; 467 
(2)  employee payroll, including all applicable taxes; 468 
(3)  payments to vendors for gaming and retail; 469 
(4)  payments to vendors for governmental operations; 470 
(5)  payments to any other debt; and 471 
(6)  to sustain any of the Nation’s other operations during implementation of the 472 
budget contingency plan. 473 

 474 
121.11.  Reporting   475 
121.11-1.  Monthly Reporting.  The Treasurer shall provide monthly reports and quarterly 476 
operational reports from direct reports to the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the 477 
Secretary’s Oneida Business Committee packet schedule for the Oneida Business Committee 478 
meeting held for the acceptance of such reports.  479 

(a)  The Treasurer’s monthly reports shall include revenue and expense summaries. 480 
121.11-2.  Annual and Semi-Annual Reporting to the General Tribal Council.  The Treasurer shall 481 
report on all receipts and expenditures and the amount and nature of all funds in their possession 482 
and custody, at the annual and semi-annual General Tribal Council meetings, and at such other 483 
times as requested by the General Tribal Council or the Oneida Business Committee. 484 

(a)  The Treasurer reports shall include an independently audited annual financial statement 485 
that provides the status or conclusion of all the receipts and debts in possession of the 486 
Treasurer including, but not limited to, all corporations owned in full or in part by the 487 
Nation. 488 

121.11-3.  Audits.  The Internal Audit Department, annually, shall conduct independent 489 
comprehensive performance audits, in accordance with the Nation’s Audit law, the Financial 490 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 491 

16 of 28



Draft 1 (Redline to Current) 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 12 
 

(GASB), of randomly selected fund units or of fund units deemed necessary by the Oneida 492 
Business Committee or Internal Audit Department.  Each fund unit shall offer its complete 493 
cooperation to the Internal Audit Department.  The Oneida Business Committee may, as it deems 494 
necessary, contract with an independent audit firm to conduct such audits. 495 
 496 
121.12.  Enforcement   497 
121.12-1.  Compliance and Enforcement.  All employees and officials of the Nation shall comply 498 
with and enforce this law to the greatest extent possible. 499 

(a)  The Executive Managers shall notify the Oneida Business Committee of any fund unit 500 
which does not comply with the budget schedule or guidelines. A list of any fund units of 501 
an elected entity which did not comply with the budget schedule or guidelines shall be 502 
included in the annual report to the General Tribal Council. 503 

121.12-2.  Violations.  Violations of this law shall be addressed using the applicable enforcement 504 
tools provided by the Nation’s laws and policies including, but not limited to, those related to 505 
employment with the Nation, conflicts of interest, ethics, and removal from an elected position. 506 
121.12-3.  Civil or Criminal Charges.  This law shall not be construed to preclude the Nation from 507 
pursuing civil or criminal charges under applicable law.  Violations of applicable federal or state 508 
civil or criminal laws, or any laws of the Nation, may be pursued in a court having jurisdiction 509 
over any such matter. 510 
 511 
End. 512 
Adopted – BC-02-08-17-C 513 
Emergency Amended – BC-11-24-20-E 514 
Emergency Amended – BC-05-12-21-C 515 
Emergency Extension – BC-11-10-21-B 516 
Amended – BC-05-11-22-B 517 
Emergency Amended – BC-10-26-22-D (Expired) 518 
Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 519 
 520 

17 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 1 
 

Title 1. Government and Finances – Chapter 121 
Twahwistatye>n$tha> 

We have a certain amount of money 
BUDGET AND FINANCES 

 
121.1.  Purpose and Policy 
121.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
121.3.  Definitions 
121.4.  Authority and Responsibilities 
121.5.  Budget 
121.6.  Expenditures and Assets 

121.7.  Grants 
121.8.  Debts 
121.9.  Employment and Labor Allocations 
121.10.  Budget Contingency Planning 
121.11.  Reporting 
121.12.  Enforcement 

 1 
 2 
121.1.  Purpose and Policy 3 
121.1-1.   Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to set forth the requirements to be followed by the 4 
Oneida Business Committee and the Oneida fund units when preparing the budget to be presented 5 
to the General Tribal Council for approval, and to establish financial policies and procedures for 6 
the Nation which: 7 

(a)  institutionalize best practices in financial management to guide decision makers in 8 
making informed decisions regarding the provision of services, implementation of business 9 
plans for enterprises, investments, and capital assets; 10 
(b)  provide a long term financial prospective and strategic intent, linking budget 11 
allocations to organizational goals, as well as providing fiscal controls and accountability 12 
for results and outcomes; 13 
(c)  identify and communicate to the membership of the Nation spending decisions for the 14 
government function, grant obligations, enterprises, membership mandates, capital 15 
expenditures, technology projects, and capital improvement projects; 16 
(d)  establish a framework for effective financial risk management; and  17 
(e)  encourage participation by the Nation’s membership. 18 

121.1-2.   Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to rely on balanced-based budgeting strategies, 19 
identifying proper authorities and ensuring compliance and enforcement. The Nation shall use 20 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), established by the Financial Accounting 21 
Standards Board, and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accounting and 22 
reporting for the financial activities of the various entities of the Nation, unless they conflict with 23 
applicable legal requirements. 24 
 25 
121.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 26 
121.2-1.   This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-02-08-17-27 
C, and amended by resolutions BC-05-11-22-B, and BC-__-__-__-__. 28 
121.2-2.   This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee or the General 29 
Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. 30 
121.2-3.  Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 31 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 32 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 33 
121.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 34 
the provisions of this law shall control. Provided that, nothing in this law amends or repeals the 35 

18 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 2 
 

requirements of resolution BC-10-08-08-A, Adopting Expenditure Authorization and Reporting 36 
Requirements. 37 
121.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 38 
 39 
121.3.  Definitions  40 
121.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 41 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 42 

(a)  “Balanced budget” means that the cost of current expenses and service provisions is 43 
equal to the forecasted current revenue sources. 44 
(b)  “Capital contribution” means an act of giving money or assets to a company or 45 
organization. 46 
(c)  “Capital expenditure” means any non-recurring  improvement as follows: 47 

(1)  Any item with a cost of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or more and a useful life 48 
of one (1) year or more; or 49 
(2)  Items purchased together where the total purchase price for all of the items is 50 
ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or more. 51 

(d)  “Capital improvement” means a non-recurring expenditure for physical improvements, 52 
including costs for:  53 

(1)  acquisition of existing buildings, land, or interests in land;  54 
(A)  Acquisition of existing buildings and land completed by the Oneida 55 
Land Commission are not included in this definition. 56 

(2)  construction of new buildings or other structures, including additions and major 57 
alterations;  58 
(3)  demolition of an existing building or other structures; 59 
(4)  physical infrastructure; and  60 
(5)  similar expenditures with a cost of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or more and 61 
a useful life of one (1) year or more.  62 

(e)  “CFO” means the Nation’s Chief Financial Officer, or their designee at their discretion. 63 
(f)  “Debt” means the secured or unsecured obligations owed by the Nation. 64 
(g)  “Debt Service Coverage Ratio” means a measurement of creditors available cash flow 65 
to pay debt obligations. This ratio evaluates if an entity has income capacity to service 66 
debts.  67 
(h)  “Enterprise” means any area or activity of the Nation that is engaged in for the business 68 
of profit or to break even. 69 
(i)  “Executive Manager” means a position of employment within the Nation that is the 70 
highest level in the chain of command under the Oneida Business Committee who is 71 
responsible for a department or division of the Nation, as identified by the Oneida Business 72 
Committee through the adoption of a resolution. 73 
(j)  “Expenditure report” means a financial report which includes, but is not limited to, a 74 
statement of cash flows, revenues, costs and expenses, assets, liabilities, and a statement of 75 
financial position. 76 
(k)  “Finance Administration” means the department of the Nation which consists of the 77 
Chief Financial Officer, Assistant Chief Financial Officer, the executive assistant to the 78 
Chief Financial Officer, and any other designated employee. 79 
(l)  “Fiscal year” means the one (1) year period each year from October 1st to September 80 
30th. 81 

19 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 3 
 

(m)  “Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio” means a measurement of a creditors capacity of 82 
earnings level or ability to cover its fixed charges such as debt payments, interest expenses, 83 
and leases expenses. Financial institutions will evaluate this ratio for purposes of credit 84 
risk.  85 
(n)  “Fund unit” means any board, committee, commission, service, program, enterprise, 86 
department, office, or any other division or non-division of the Nation which receives an 87 
appropriation approved by the Nation. 88 
(o)  “Government service” means any area or activity of the Nation that is not expected to 89 
create revenue for the Nation and not expected to make a profit at any time. 90 
(p)  “Line item” means the specific account within a fund unit’s budget or category that 91 
expenditures are charged to.   92 
(q)  “Manager” means the person in charge of directing, controlling, and administering the 93 
activities of a fund unit. 94 
(r)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 95 
(s)  “Secretary” means the Oneida Nation Secretary, or their designee at their discretion.  96 
(t)  “Treasurer” means the Oneida Nation Treasurer, or their designee at their discretion.  97 

 98 
121.4.  Authority and Responsibilities 99 
121.4-1.   Oneida Business Committee.  The Oneida Business Committee shall: 100 

(a)  oversee the development of the Nation’s budget; 101 
(b)  oversee the implementation of the Nation’s budget;  102 
(c)  exercise the authority provided in Article IV, Section 1, of the Constitution and Bylaws 103 
of the Oneida Nation, as delegated to the Oneida Business Committee by the General Tribal 104 
Council.  105 

121.4-2.  Treasurer.  In accordance with the Constitution and Bylaws of the Oneida Nation, the 106 
Nation’s Treasurer shall: 107 

(a)  accept, receive, receipt for, preserve and safeguard all funds in the custody of the 108 
Nation, whether they be funds of the Nation or special funds for which the Nation is acting 109 
as trustee or custodian; 110 
(b)  deposit all funds in such depository as the Nation shall direct and shall make and 111 
preserve a faithful record of such funds; 112 
(c)  submit expenditure reports and other financial reports as deemed necessary by the 113 
Oneida Business Committee or the General Tribal Council at: 114 

(1)  the annual General Tribal Council meeting; 115 
(2)  the semi-annual General Tribal Council meeting; and 116 
(3)  other such times as may be directed by the Oneida Business Committee or the 117 
General Tribal Council; and  118 

(d)  present the proposed draft budget to the General Tribal Council at the annual budget 119 
meeting. 120 

121.4-3.  Chief Financial Officer.  The CFO shall:  121 
(a)  report to the Oneida Business Committee and/or Executive Managers any expenditures 122 
that do not follow budget guidelines or conform to the budget; 123 
(b)  provide managers with monthly revenue and expense reports; 124 
(c)  assist with the submission and presentation of the Treasurer’s report to the Oneida 125 
Business Committee, which shall specifically include any monthly variances that are one 126 
hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) or more in total;  127 

20 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 4 
 

(d)  provide the Oneida Business Committee with information and reports as requested;  128 
(e)  present the Treasurer’s report and hold financial condition meetings with the Nation’s 129 
management on a minimum of a quarterly basis; and  130 
(f)  inform the Oneida Business Committee of any Executive Managers and/or fund unit 131 
which does not follow the budget development process guidelines or deadlines as set forth 132 
by the Treasurer. 133 

121.4-4.  Managers.  Managers shall:  134 
(a)  ensure that their business units operate, on a day-to-day basis, in compliance with the 135 
budget adopted pursuant to this law; 136 
(b)  report to the CFO and their relevant Executive Manager explanations and corrective 137 
actions for any monthly variance that is one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) or more 138 
in total;  139 
(c)  submit budget review reports to the CFO on a reasonable and timely basis not to exceed 140 
thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the month; and  141 
(d)  submit a budget for their fund unit in accordance with the budget schedule and 142 
guidelines as adopted by the Oneida Business Committee.  143 

 144 
121.5.  Budget  145 
121.5-1.   The Nation shall develop, adopt, and manage an annual budget. All revenues and 146 
expenditures of the Nation shall be in accordance with the annual budget.  147 

(a)  The Nation’s budget shall be a balanced budget and not propose to spend more funds 148 
than are reasonably expected to become available to the Nation during that fiscal year.  149 

(1) Underwriting debt resources or the utilization of existing debt instruments shall 150 
be expressly prohibited from use to balance the Nation’s annual operational budget. 151 

(b)  The budget shall align with any priorities developed and adopted by the Oneida 152 
Business Committee on behalf of the Nation.  153 
(c)  The Nation’s corporate entities shall not be included in the Nation’s budget. 154 

121.5-2. Content of the Budget.  The Nation’s budget shall include the following information: 155 
(a)  Estimated revenues to be received from all sources; and 156 
(b)  The individual budgets of each fund unit. 157 

121.5-3.  Fund Categories.  The Nation’s budget shall include, but not be limited to, the following 158 
categories of fund accounts: 159 

(a)  General Fund.  The General Fund account is the Nation’s main operating fund which 160 
is used to account for all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. 161 
(b)  Financial Sovereignty Fund. The Financial Sovereignty Fund account is used by the 162 
Nation to prevent default on debt and to sustain operations during times of extreme 163 
financial distress. 164 
(c)  Grant Reserve Fund. The Grant Reserve Fund account is used by the Nation to sustain 165 
grant operations during times of extreme financial distress or sustain grant operations when 166 
grant funding has ended and the Nation has not had the appropriate time to plan for the end 167 
of delivery of those grant operations.  168 

121.5-4.  Budget Adoption Procedure.  The Nation shall develop and adopt its budget according 169 
to the following procedures: 170 

(a)   Budget Schedule and Guidelines.  The Treasurer shall develop the necessary 171 
guidelines, including specific timelines and deadlines, to be followed by the managers that 172 
have budget responsibility in preparing and submitting proposed budgets.  The Treasurer 173 

21 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 5 
 

shall submit the guidelines to the Oneida Business Committee for review and approval 174 
through the adoption of a resolution no later than March 1st of each calendar year. 175 

(1)  The budget schedule and guidelines shall include at least one (1) opportunity 176 
for community input from the Nation’s membership on what should be included in 177 
the upcoming fiscal year budget. 178 
(2)  Each fund unit shall be responsible for complying with the budget schedule and 179 
guidelines to submit a proposed budget to the Treasurer. The Finance 180 
Administration shall not submit any budget on behalf of a fund unit unless granted 181 
express permission from the Oneida Business Committee. 182 

(b)  Annual Proposed Budgets.  The CFO shall receive, review, and compile the proposed 183 
budgets from all the fund units into the Nation’s draft budget. The Treasurer and CFO shall 184 
present the Nation’s draft budget to the Oneida Business Committee for review each year 185 
to ensure that it is consistent with the Nation’s priorities.  186 

(1)  Notification of Budget Increase or Decrease. The Treasurer shall identify in 187 
the budget guidelines a percentage of an increase or decrease in a fund unit’s budget 188 
from the prior year budget that is required to be noticed to the Oneida Business 189 
Committee. The Treasurer shall notify the Oneida Business Committee of any fund 190 
units whose proposed budget increased or decreased by this percentage. 191 

(c)  Final Draft Budget.  The Oneida Business Committee shall work with the Treasurer, 192 
CFO, and managers to compile a final draft budget to be presented to the General Tribal 193 
Council. The Oneida Business Committee shall approve, by resolution, the final draft 194 
budget to be presented to the General Tribal Council. 195 
(d)  Community Meetings.  Once the Oneida Business Committee has approved the final 196 
draft budget, the Treasurer shall hold, at a minimum, two (2) community informational 197 
meetings to present the contents of the final draft budget that will be presented to the 198 
General Tribal Council.  199 
(e)  Budget Adoption.  The Oneida Business Committee shall present the budget to the 200 
General Tribal Council with a request for adoption by resolution no later than September 201 
30th of each year. The General Tribal Council shall be responsible for adopting the 202 
Nation’s budget. 203 

(1)  Continuing Budget Resolution.  In the event that the General Tribal Council 204 
does not adopt a budget by September 30th, the Oneida Business Committee may 205 
adopt a continuing budget resolution for a period of time not to exceed three (3) 206 
months, until such time as a budget is adopted by the General Tribal Council. If the 207 
General Tribal Council does not adopt a budget within three (3) months of the 208 
adoption of the continuing budget resolution, then the Oneida Business Committee 209 
shall adopt the Nation’s budget. 210 
(2)  Emergency Budget Adoption.  In the event that the Nation proclaims an 211 
emergency, in accordance with the Emergency Management law, that stays in effect 212 
for at least one (1) month and prevents the presentation to and adoption of the 213 
budget by the General Tribal Council, the Oneida Business Committee shall adopt 214 
the Nation’s budget. 215 

121.5-5.  Amendments to the Nation’s Budget.  After the budget is adopted, amendments of the 216 
budget shall not be permitted unless it is necessary to avoid a budget deficit. The Treasurer and 217 
CFO shall identify when forecasted revenue and forecasted expenses are impacted in a manner 218 
which creates a deficit for the current fiscal year. The CFO shall provide the Oneida Business 219 

22 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 6 
 

Committee a written fiscal analysis and any input on the potential budget amendment. The Oneida 220 
Business Committee shall be responsible for adopting an amendment to the budget through 221 
resolution of the Nation. The Oneida Business Committee shall present notification of the budget 222 
amendment at the next available General Tribal Council meeting. 223 
 224 
121.6.  Expenditures and Assets  225 
121.6-1.  Procurement Rule Handbook.  The Purchasing Department is delegated rulemaking 226 
authority in accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop a Procurement Rule 227 
Handbook which provides the sign-off process and authorities required to expend funds on behalf 228 
of the Nation. 229 
121.6-2.  Authority to Expend Funds.  The Oneida Business Committee shall have the authority to 230 
expend appropriated funds in accordance with the Nation’s adopted budget pursuant to the 231 
Procurement Rule Handbook developed by the Purchasing Department. The authority to expend 232 
funds is then necessarily delegated to other managers, including Executive Managers of the Nation 233 
who manage budgets pursuant to their job descriptions based on the Procurement Rule Handbook. 234 
121.6-3.  Unbudgeted Expenditures.   235 

(a)  Approval of Unbudgeted Expenditures.  A fund unit shall not make an unbudgeted 236 
expenditure of two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) or more unless approval 237 
is granted by the Oneida Business Committee. The CFO shall provide the Oneida Business 238 
Committee a written fiscal analysis and any input on the potential unbudgeted expenditure. 239 
The Oneida Business Committee shall approve any unbudgeted expenditure through the 240 
adoption of a resolution prior to the expenditure being made by a fund unit. 241 
(b)  Notification of Unbudgeted Expenditures.  The Oneida Business Committee shall set 242 
through resolution a threshold amount for unbudgeted expenditures that require 243 
notification by the Oneida Business Committee to the General Tribal Council at the next 244 
available General Tribal Council meeting. 245 
(c)  Unbudgeted Supplemental Funding.  In the event that the Nation receives any 246 
supplemental or emergency funding of two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) 247 
or more, the Oneida Business Committee shall develop and adopt, through resolution, a 248 
spending plan to guide expenditures of the supplemental funding in accordance with any 249 
provided guidance for the supplemental funding and audit compliance. 250 

121.6-5.  Obligated Future Expenditures.  Notwithstanding an approved multi-year contract, no 251 
fund unit shall obligate the Nation to make any future expenditures beyond the current budget year 252 
unless the fund unit identifies, and the Oneida Business Committee approves through the adoption 253 
of a resolution, the source and extent of any future funds that are recommended to be held in 254 
reserve to meet that future obligation. 255 
121.6-6.  Unexpended Capital Improvement Funds.  Unexpended capital improvement funds shall 256 
carry over at the end of each fiscal year and remain available for use, provided that such funds are 257 
required to remain appropriated for the same purpose as originally budgeted until the project is 258 
complete.  Once a capital improvement project is complete, any remaining unexpended funds shall 259 
be returned to the General Fund. 260 
121.6-7.  Capital Contributions.  Any capital contributions made by the Nation shall be identified 261 
in the annual budget.  262 

(a)  Any reassignment of a loan provided by the Nation into a capital contribution shall be 263 
noticed to the General Tribal Council.  264 

23 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 7 
 

121.6-8.  Assets of the Nation shall not be divested, or borrowed against, to balance the annual 265 
budget.  266 

. 267 
121.7.  Grants  268 
121.7-1.  Expending Grant Funds.  Grant funds shall be expended according to any grant 269 
requirements and guidelines of the granting agency.  270 

(a)  Grant funds may be utilized for, but not limited to, the following: 271 
(1)  purchases;  272 
(2)  travel;  273 
(3)  training; 274 
(4)  hiring grant required positions; and 275 
(5)  any other requirements attached to the funds as a condition of the Nation’s 276 
acceptance of the grant funds. 277 

121.7-2.  Grant Reserve Fund Account.  The Oneida Business Committee shall maintain a Grant 278 
Reserve Fund account within the ownership investment report to be used to sustain grant 279 
operations during times of extreme financial distress or sustain grant operations when grant 280 
funding has ended. The Grant Reserve Fund account shall be an obligated fund, that is fully funded 281 
with separately identified cash resources. 282 

(a)  The Treasurer, in consultation with the CFO, shall establish, and the Oneida Business 283 
Committee shall approve, the level of funds required in the Grant Reserve Fund account 284 
relative to the scale of grant dollars we receive on an annual basis. 285 
(b)  The Treasurer shall set aside funds within the budget in the Grant Reserve Fund account 286 
until the established level has been achieved.   287 

121.7-3.  Grant Funded Positions.  If the grant funding for a fully grant funded position is 288 
eliminated, then the position shall be eliminated. To transition a position from grant funding to 289 
being funded through the Nation’s budget, a manager shall follow the standard procedure for 290 
seeking the development and approval of a new position in the Nation’s annual budget and labor 291 
allocations. 292 
 293 
121.8.  Debts 294 
121.8-1.  General.  The acquisition of debt by the Nation shall be processed in accordance with 295 
sound fiscal diligence. The Nation shall comply with all relevant federal and state banking laws, 296 
rules, and policies applicable to the credit agreement. 297 

(a)  Any debt instrument utilized by the Nation shall not exceed the life of what is being 298 
encumbered. 299 

121.8-2.  Acquisition of Debt.  Any debt underwritten by the Nation for ten million dollars 300 
($10,000,000) or more shall be noticed to the General Tribal Council at the next available meeting 301 
prior to the execution of the credit agreement encumbering all pledges of repayment.  302 

(a)  If emergency circumstances exist which prevents the notice of the acquisition of debt 303 
to the General Tribal Council, the Oneida Business Committee may proceed with the 304 
acquisition of debt. 305 
(b)  Prior to the acquisition of any debt, the Nation shall obtain an amortization schedule 306 
for the repayment of the debt. 307 

121.8-3.  Use of Debt.  Credit proceeds may be utilized for project capital, general use, financing 308 
of equity, and all unspecified uses. Compliance with debt covenants is required to avoid credit 309 
default.  310 

24 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 8 
 

121.8-4. Credit Ratios. Maintaining fiscally responsible prudent credit ratios is consistent with 311 
effective budget management and financial control.  312 

(a)  Debt Service Coverage Ratio.  The Debt Service Coverage Ratio shall not exceed the 313 
acceptable range as defined by low-risk debt financing options at the specific financial 314 
institution. 315 
(b)  Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio.  The Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio shall be maintained 316 
at the acceptable range as defined by low-risk debt financing options at the specific 317 
financial institution. 318 

121.8-5.  Corporate Debt.  The Nation shall not be obligated to any debt obligations of its corporate 319 
entities. 320 
 321 
121.9.  Employment and Labor Allocations   322 
121.9-1.  Employment Cap.  The Treasurer and CFO shall identify a maximum number of full-323 
time equivalent (FTE) employees to be employed by the Nation. The Oneida Business Committee 324 
shall have the authority to approve this employment cap, and any amendments thereto, through the 325 
adoption of a resolution. The employment cap shall be reviewed annually by the Oneida Business 326 
Committee. 327 

(a)  The Nation shall not exceed the number of FTE employees identified in the 328 
employment cap. 329 

121.9-2. Labor Allocations List.  The Treasurer, CFO, Executive Managers, and the Executive 330 
Human Resources Director shall utilize the Nation’s employment cap to develop a labor 331 
allocations list. The labor allocations list shall identify the number of FTE employees each 332 
employment area of the Nation is allocated. The Oneida Business Committee shall have the 333 
authority to adopt the labor allocation list, and any amendments thereto, through the adoption of a 334 
resolution. The Oneida Business Committee shall review the labor allocations list on an annual 335 
basis. 336 

(a)  The total number of FTE employees identified in the labor allocations list shall not 337 
exceed the Nation’s employment cap. 338 
(b)  The Treasurer, CFO, Executive Managers, and Executive Human Resources Director 339 
shall develop a standard operating procedure which identifies a process for the 340 
consideration of requests to revise the labor allocations list. The Oneida Business 341 
Committee shall approve this standard operating procedure, and any amendments thereto, 342 
through the adoption of a resolution. 343 

121.9-3.  Unbudgeted Positions.  Any position which has not been specifically budgeted for and 344 
included in the labor allocation list shall be prohibited. Budgeted labor dollars and approved 345 
positions shall not be transferrable in any form. 346 

(a)  Exception.  The Oneida Business Committee may authorize an unbudgeted position for 347 
a fund unit. The CFO shall provide the Oneida Business Committee a written fiscal analysis 348 
and any input on the potential unbudgeted position. The Oneida Business Committee shall 349 
authorize the unbudgeted position through the adoption of a resolution. 350 

 351 
121.10.  Budget Contingency Planning   352 
121.10-1.  Budget Contingency Plan.  The Oneida Business Committee shall work with the CFO, 353 
Executive Managers, and managers to create a budget contingency plan which provides a strategy 354 
for the Nation to respond to or prepare for potential extreme financial distress that could negatively 355 
impact the Nation. 356 

25 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 9 
 

(a)  Extreme financial distress includes, but is not limited to: 357 
(1)  natural or human-made disasters;  358 
(2)  United States Government shutdown;  359 
(3)  emergency proclamations; and 360 
(4)  economic downturns. 361 

(b)  The Oneida Business Committee shall approve the budget contingency plan, and any 362 
amendments thereto, through the adoption of a resolution. 363 

121.10-2.  Cost Saving Tools.  As part of the budget contingency plan, the Oneida Business 364 
Committee may require the use of cost saving tools, provided that the use of such complies with 365 
all laws of the Nation. Cost saving tools may include, but are not limited to, the use of the 366 
following: 367 

(a)  stabilization funds; 368 
(b)  cost optimization; 369 
(c)  furloughs; and 370 
(d)  layoffs.  371 

121.10-3.  When the CFO determines that the Nation is under extreme financial distress or may 372 
face extreme financial distress in the near future, the CFO shall inform the Oneida Business 373 
Committee, and the Oneida Business Committee shall be responsible for implementing the budget 374 
contingency plan.   375 
121.10-4.  Financial Sovereignty Fund Account.  The Oneida Business Committee shall maintain 376 
a Financial Sovereignty Fund account within the ownership investment report to be used to prevent 377 
default on debt and to sustain operations during times of extreme financial distress. The Financial 378 
Sovereignty Fund account shall be a restricted fund. 379 

(a)  The Financial Sovereignty Fund account in combination with the Grant Reserve Fund 380 
account shall consist of a minimum reserve of one (1) year of operating expenses to ensure 381 
continuity of business for the Nation. 382 
(b)  The Treasurer, in consultation with the CFO, shall establish, and the Oneida Business 383 
Committee shall approve through the adoption of a resolution, the percentage of the annual 384 
budget that shall be set aside in the Financial Sovereignty Fund account until the 385 
established level has been achieved.   386 
(c)  Funds in the Financial Sovereignty Fund account may only be used when the Oneida 387 
Business Committee has determined that the Nation is under extreme financial distress for 388 
the following purposes and only to the extent that alternative funding sources are 389 
unavailable: 390 

(1)  payments to notes payable to debt service, both principal and interest, and 391 
applicable service fees; 392 
(2)  employee payroll, including all applicable taxes; 393 
(3)  payments to vendors for gaming and retail; 394 
(4)  payments to vendors for governmental operations; 395 
(5)  payments to any other debt; and 396 
(6)  to sustain any of the Nation’s other operations during implementation of the 397 
budget contingency plan. 398 

 399 
121.11.  Reporting   400 
121.11-1.  Monthly Reporting.  The Treasurer shall provide monthly reports and quarterly 401 
operational reports from direct reports to the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the 402 

26 of 28



Draft 1 
2025 10 15 

  

1 O.C. 121- Page 10 
 

Secretary’s Oneida Business Committee packet schedule for the Oneida Business Committee 403 
meeting held for the acceptance of such reports.  404 

(a)  The Treasurer’s monthly reports shall include revenue and expense summaries. 405 
121.11-2.  Annual and Semi-Annual Reporting to the General Tribal Council.  The Treasurer shall 406 
report on all receipts and expenditures and the amount and nature of all funds in their possession 407 
and custody, at the annual and semi-annual General Tribal Council meetings, and at such other 408 
times as requested by the General Tribal Council or the Oneida Business Committee. 409 

(a)  The Treasurer reports shall include an independently audited annual financial statement 410 
that provides the status or conclusion of all the receipts and debts in possession of the 411 
Treasurer including, but not limited to, all corporations owned in full or in part by the 412 
Nation. 413 

121.11-3.  Audits.  The Internal Audit Department, annually, shall conduct independent 414 
comprehensive performance audits, in accordance with the Nation’s Audit law, the Financial 415 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 416 
(GASB), of randomly selected fund units or of fund units deemed necessary by the Oneida 417 
Business Committee or Internal Audit Department.  Each fund unit shall offer its complete 418 
cooperation to the Internal Audit Department.  The Oneida Business Committee may, as it deems 419 
necessary, contract with an independent audit firm to conduct such audits. 420 
 421 
121.12.  Enforcement   422 
121.12-1.  Compliance and Enforcement.  All employees and officials of the Nation shall comply 423 
with and enforce this law to the greatest extent possible. 424 

(a)  The Executive Managers shall notify the Oneida Business Committee of any fund unit 425 
which does not comply with the budget schedule or guidelines. A list of any fund units of 426 
an elected entity which did not comply with the budget schedule or guidelines shall be 427 
included in the annual report to the General Tribal Council. 428 

121.12-2.  Violations.  Violations of this law shall be addressed using the applicable enforcement 429 
tools provided by the Nation’s laws and policies including, but not limited to, those related to 430 
employment with the Nation, conflicts of interest, ethics, and removal from an elected position. 431 
121.12-3.  Civil or Criminal Charges.  This law shall not be construed to preclude the Nation from 432 
pursuing civil or criminal charges under applicable law.  Violations of applicable federal or state 433 
civil or criminal laws, or any laws of the Nation, may be pursued in a court having jurisdiction 434 
over any such matter. 435 
 436 
End. 437 
Adopted – BC-02-08-17-C 438 
Emergency Amended – BC-11-24-20-E 439 
Emergency Amended – BC-05-12-21-C 440 
Emergency Extension – BC-11-10-21-B 441 
Amended – BC-05-11-22-B 442 
Emergency Amended – BC-10-26-22-D (Expired) 443 
Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 444 
 445 

27 of 28



1 10/10/2025 1:38 PMLOC

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

October 2025
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

November 2025October 2025

Sep 29 30 Oct 1 2 3
8:30am LOC Prep Meeting

(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting; 
BC_Conf_Room) - 

9:00am Legislative 
Operating Committee 
Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting; 

10:30am Budget and 
Finances Law Work 
Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting) - 
Clorissa N. Leeman

6 7 8 9 10
11:00am Vendor 

Licensing - work 
meeting with LOC 
(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting; 
BC_Exec_Conf_Room) - 
Carolyn A. Salutz

13 14 15 16 17
3:00pm UCC/Secured 

Transactions (Microsoft
Teams Meeting) - 
Grace L. Elliott

8:30am LOC Prep Meeting
(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting; 

9:00am Legislative 
Operating Committee 
Meeting (Microsoft 

12:15pm PUBLIC 
MEETING: Public Use of

11:00am Recycling and 
Solid Waste Disposal 
amendments - work 
meeting with LOC 

2:30pm LOC Work 
Session (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting; 
BC_Exec_Conf_Room) - 

9:30am Oneida Personnel 
Policies and 
Procedures 
Amendments Work 

11:00am Furlough + 
Layoff work meeting  
(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting; 

20 21 22 23 24

27 28 29 30 31
9:30am Law/Legislative 

Update Meeting  
(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting) - Clorissa N. 
Leeman

MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY

28 of 28


	I. Agenda
	II. October 1, 2025 LOC Meeting Minutes
	III.1 Budget and Finances Law Amendments CS
	III.1.1 Draft 1 (Redline to Current)
	III.1.2 Draft 1 (Clean)

	X. Calendar



